
22 February 2016 Planning Commission minutes.    BScholin, Secretary 

    Planning Commission of Pine City, Minnesota 
Minutes of Regular Meeting: 23 February 2016 

 
 
 
 
Commissioners: Christopherson, Jahnz, Ovick, Sauter, Scholin, Skluzacek 
City Staff / Officials: Johnson 
Absent: Bombard, Cammilleri, D’Aigle, Pederson, Rydberg, student representative LeBrun 
 
 
Christopherson called the meeting to order at 6:30pm, with the Pledge of Allegiance. Minutes of the January 26th meeting were approved 

with time and date corrections, on a motion by Jahnz, seconded by Sauter. 
 
 
Public Hearing on Request to Rezone a Portion of the Fawn Meadows PUD: City Staff and the EDA have been discussing, with staff 

of Pine County, the transfer of Parcel 42-6104-100 to the City. This parcel is tax-forfeited, and has not been developed. It is 
currently part of an approved residential PUD, but the EDA would like the Commission to consider re-zoning it to TI-1, in 
hopes of attracting industrial development. No application has actually been made, at this point. 

 
The public hearing was called to order at 6:32pm, to take public input on this proposal. Johnson reviewed the history of the 
parcel, and what has taken place to start this process. There were approximately 20 nearby landowners present for the 
hearing. Johnson stated that he had gotten a number of inquiries about this proposal, and some negative comments. He 
pointed out the location of the parcel on the zoning map. He also answered questions about the recently annexed portions to 
the north of this parcel.  
 
Sarah Althoff asked about plans for new access to the parcel, and Johnson explained that one interested developer is looking 
at both a roadway access and a railroad supr. Lisa Westberg asked about who the interested party is, and Johnson stated that 
he could not disclose many details at this point, but he described some of the land changes that may be needed. He also 
explained that this developer is considering other parcels as well. A concern was expressed by several present over any 
additional traffic that may result from an industrial development. Jessa Mansavage said she was totally opposed due to the 
number of children living in Fawn Meadows.  
 
Mark Skalicky expressed his concerns over rail traffic and nuisances created by any industrial uses. Mary Skalicky asked 
about the process that could occur with different potential developers. Johnson explained a bit about what restrictions would 
be in effect in the TI-1 district. Marie Orvis asked how zoning changes would affect tax rates. Craig Skalicky asked if the 
developer would consider a different parcel that he has some interest in. There was a question about tax-forfeited property, 
and Johnson explained how this may work. Laura Root asked about costs for rezoning, and Johnson explained that this would 
be small, and typically borne by the developer. She also asked about road plowing, and Johnson asked that she talk about that 
after he has investigated more. There was a question about who actually decides, and whether public input actually matters. It 
was answered in a variety of ways by a variety of people.  
 
Johnson asked if anyone present is supportive of this change in zoning, and no one indicated that they were. Lori Swanson 
stated that she would be supportive if it brought jobs and if it adequately protected current properties. There was also a 
question about whether the City is not better off with leaving this land residential, and whether an additional crossing would 
be allowed. There was concern expressed about railroad cars blocking the single crossing into Fawn Meadows residential area. 
Wade Pangerl asked about effects on his property values. No one had a good answer to those questions.  
 
Craig Skalicky asked if the City would give the land to a developer, or sell it, and Johnson explained that there is a policy for 
how this would be determined. Christopherson explained the EDA’s intent for requesting that this parcel be made available 
for industrial development. Lisa Westberg stated that the residents do not currently get any noise or traffic from the Industrial 
Park, and they would like that situation to continue. James Jahnz asked what the purpose of this change is, and 
Christopherson stated that it is growing the tax base, plus attracting jobs. Sarah Althoff asked what the next action would be, 
and Johnson stated that, if the City proceeds, the City Council will submit an official request, which will trigger another public 
hearing.  
 
There being no more comments, the public hearing was closed at 7:18pm. No action was taken. 

 
 
 
Public Hearing on Modifications to the Official Zoning Map: Johnson explained that, with recent additions to the City via orderly 

annexation, some updating of the Zoning Map is needed. He has provided copies of the proposed zoning map as developed 
by Staff.  

 
The Public Hearing was called to order at 7:21pm, to take public input on this proposal. Johnson explained that the only 
change to the current map is to add the new parcels and designate them as A-O. There were no comments from those present 
in the audience, but a question about any further annexation plans. Johnson stated that the Orderly Annexation agreement 
includes one additional area yet to be annexed. There being no further comments, Christopherson closed the hearing at 
7:24pm. 

 

 



22 February 2016 Planning Commission minutes.    BScholin, Secretary 

 
 
Consideration of Modifications to the Official Zoning Map: Following brief discussion, Skluzacek made a motion to recommend that the 

Council adopt the revised zoning map as drafted. Jahnz seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
City Council Feedback: Scholin reported that the Council had approved the variance and the development site plan for Casey’s Retail, 

as recommended, as well as the development site plan for Old 61 Auto Sales.  
 
 
Commissioners’ Concerns: There were concerns expressed about the need for more residential areas in town, and a general discussion 

of that. 
 
 
City Planner's Comments: Johnson pointed out that Planning Commission training is available from the League of Minnesota Cities, 

and asked that Commission members let him know if they are interested in participating. He also stated that Casey’s has 
made applications for proceeding with their development, and is moving toward construction. 

 
 
 
There being no further business, Christopherson declared the meeting adjourned at 7:41pm. 


